
3as                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT AGENDA 

       
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not 
appearing on the agenda that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the commission.   

 
1. Approval of the Minutes from February 10, 2016 

 
2. Post Event Reviews (attachments) 

a. Bouquets to the Dead 
 
3. Event Reviews (attachments) 

a. Modification to Approved Plaza Permit Application for the Tuesday Night Farmers 
Market  

 
4. Subcommittee Reports  

a. Tree Committee (Standing Subcommittee) 
Participates on Tree Committee as voting member; reviews Tree Removal applications, 
arborist reports, research special projects. Comms. Rateaver and Brown. 
Next Tree Committee Meeting: March 17, 2016. 

• Action: Appoint alternate member 
• Approval letter: Attachments 

 
5. Establish Fees for 2016 Tuesday Night Farmers Market 

 
6. Budget Template Discussion 

 
7. Discussion on Rational for Events 

 
8. Notice of Review and Preparation of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan Update 

(Information Only) 
 

9. Continued Consideration of Monument in the Plaza Park 
 

10. Update on the Plaza Park Restrooms 
  

11. Future Agenda Items 
 

12. Commissioner and Staff Comments 
 

13. Adjournment (Next regular meeting is April 13, 2016) 
 

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred to on the agenda are available for 
public inspection the Monday before each regularly scheduled meeting at City Hall, located at No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA.  Any 
documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda after the agenda has been distributed will be made available for inspection at City Hall, No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA during regular 
business hours. 

   ___________________________________________ 
   Katherine Wall, Public Works Administrative Manager 

COMMUNITY SERVICES & ENVIRONMENT COMMISSION  
 City Hall Conference Room 

No. 1 The Plaza 
 

Wednesday, March 9, 2016 

6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 

Commissioners: Christopher Petlock-Chairman, Fred Allebach, Ken Brown, Christina Cook, Inge Hutzel, 
Richard Pollack, Chris Rateaver, Denise Wilbanks, Amy Harrington 

 
 
  

 



 

  

  
    COMMUNITY SERVICES & ENVIRONMENT COMMISSION 

City Hall, # 1 The Plaza 
Sonoma, CA 

 
February 10, 2016 

  Minutes 
  

Commissioners Present:   Comms. Allebach, Blattner, Brown, Cook, Petlock, Rateaver, Wilbanks 
 
Commissioners Absent:  Comms. Blattner and Hutzel 
 
Also Present:    Special Event Coordinator/Associate Planner Atkins 
     Hit The Road Jack: Mark Aiton and Gary Johnson 
     Valley of the Moon Vintage Festival: Rob and Roxane Sampson  
     Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market: Chris Welch, Emily 

Fitzpatrick, Bill Dardon 
       
           
Chair Petlock called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.   
 
1.  Approval of the Minutes from January 13, 2016 
It was moved by Comm. Brown, seconded by Comm. Allebach to approve the minutes of  
January 13, 2015. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
2. Post Event Reviews 
2.a. Hit the Road Jack—June 7, 2015. 

Staff report received.  
2.b. Valley of the Moon Vintage Festival—September 25, 2015 through September 27, 2015. 

Staff report received. 
 
3. Event Reviews 
3.a. Tuesday Night Farmers Market—May 3, 2016 through October 25, 2016, Tuesdays.  

It was moved by Comm. Pollack and seconded by Comm. Brown to approve the 2016 
Tuesday Night Farmers Market subject to Special Event Committee conditions of 
approval. In addition, the CSEC shall establish the 2016 fees at the March 9, 2016 CSEC 
meeting. 
 

4. Subcommittee Reports 
Tree Committee (Standing Subcommittee). 
 
5. Exception to limited use of the Plaza Horseshoe Lawn—SONOMAWOOD Sign 
It was moved by Comm. Cook and seconded by Comm. Brown to approve the display of the 
SONOMAWOOD sign from March 30, 2016 through April 3, 2016. In addition, multiple year 
approvals were approved until 2022. After discussion and public testimony, the CSEC 
Commission voted 5-3 (with one commissioner absent) to approve the exception as submitted 
with the condition that an encroachment permit shall be required and the SIFF shall provide an 
insurance certificate of liability for no less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) naming the City of 
Sonoma as an additional insured, with an endorsement stating that the event holders insurance 
is primary. 



Community Services & Environment Commission: Minutes                                                            June 10, 2015 
 

 2

 

6. Bike to Work Day 
A subcommittee was formed consisting of Comms. Petlock, Pollack, and Harrington to facilitate 
Bike to Work Day 2016.  
 

7. Arbor Day 
The Sonoma Valley Visitor’s Center spearheaded this event in the past. Wendy Peterson 
provided staff with an Arbor Day binder. The binder will be stored at the Public Works 
Department with other Tree Committee documents. April 29, 2016 was identified as a potential 
date for the Arbor Day celebration. 
 
8. Plaza park Restrooms 
Staff indicated that the 2015-2016 Capital Improvement budget included a line item for the 
design of improvements for the Carnegie Building (including restrooms improvements); however, 
the work is not anticipated to be completed until October 2017. Comm. Wilbanks will contact 
Public Works Director to discuss further. 
 
9. Future Agenda Items 
The following items will be placed on the March 9, 2016 meeting agenda: 

 Special Event Policy Budget Template Discussion (requested by Comm. Allebach). 
 Discussion on Rational for Events (requested by Comm. Allebach). 

 
10. Commissioner and staff Comments 
 
Chair Rateaver adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, March 9, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Wendy Atkins Special Event Coordinator/Associate Planner 



Agenda Item 2.a 
  

March 9, 2016 
 
 

MEMO 
  
To: Community Services and Environment Commission 
       
Staff: Wendy Atkins, Associate Planner/Special Event 

Coordinator 
 
 Agenda Item: POST EVENT REVIEW 2015 
 
 Bouquets to the Dead 
 

Date of use:  October 31, November 1, November, 2, and November 3, 
2015 

 
Area(s) of use:  Mountain Cemetery 
 

  City of Sonoma Special Events Policy includes the 
 following: 

 
Section D.4.  Post-Event Review 

 
Sponsoring Organizations must attend a post event review at the next 
meeting of the CSEC that is held not more than ninety days after the 
event. The event representative shall provide the event’s complete and full 
financial statements (actual gross income and expenditures) to the City 
Clerk within seventy days after the event. City staff shall provide 
completed post event evaluation for review and discussion at the post 
event review meeting. Payment of all post event invoices, charges, fees or 
penalties must be received within ten days subsequent to post event 
review. 
 
Conditions of approval of subsequent years’ events may be affected by 
the organization’s failure to attend the mandatory post event review and/or 
to provide required information, which failure may also constitute grounds 
for denial of future years’ event permits. 
 

The purpose of this provision is to provide the opportunity for the CSEC to review 
an event’s impact, compliance to conditions included with approval of its use 
application, and to provide comment/suggestion to an event organizer prior to 
submitting use applications for future events.  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Additionally, this affords an event organizer opportunity to provide comment to 
post event evaluations completed by City staff. 
 
Discussion:  

 Issues listed on Parks Post Event Summary: 
 

 Review Financial Summary 
 

 Recycling Report 
  

 
 
Attachments: 
 2015 Application    
 2015 Post Event Summary 
 Waste Summary Report 
 Financial Summary    
 































Agenda Item #3.a 
March 9, 2016 

M E M O 

 

TO: Community Services and Environment Commission 

FROM: Special Event Coordinator/Associate Planner Atkins  

RE: Modification to Approved Plaza Permit Application for the Tuesday Night Farm-
ers Market  
 

 

 
On February 10, 2016, the CSEC approved the 2016 Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market Plaza Permit Application, sub-
ject to conditions of approval (see attached approval letter). At this time the applicant is requesting a modification to 
the approved permit to allow the sales of wine and beer and wine tasting (see attached Supplementary Information 
for Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market Permit Application for Possession and Consumption of Alcoholic 
Beverages on City Property).  
 
Recommended Commission Action:  
Approve the Plaza Park Permit modifications subject to the following Special Event Committee recommended con-
ditions of approval: 

 Meet with the Parks Supervisor and Special Event Coordinator two weeks prior to the event. 
 Contract with the Police Department for security services: Without the service of alcohol, one deputy, 13 

days, 3 hours per day; if alcohol  is served, one deputy 18 days, 3 hours per day. 
 Reimburse the City when an on-site monitor is required at the rate of $224 per hour—not to exceed 7 hours 

per night. 
 Comply with the City’s Standard Special Event Insurance Requirements (attached).  
 Please submit the policy certificate and endorsement prior to the first market. 
 Comply with the attached City of Sonoma Outdoor special Events Standards. 

 
 



















kwall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 4.a

kwall
Typewritten Text

kwall
Typewritten Text





Agenda Item 5 
February 10, 2016 

 
MEMO 

 
 
To: Community Services and Environment Commission 
       
Staff: Wendy Atkins, Associate Planner/Special Event Coordinator 
 
Agenda Item: Establish Fees for Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market  
 
  
Background: At the February 10, 2016, CSEC meeting, the CSEC approved the 2016 
Tuesday Night Farmers Market event with the condition that the CSEC establish the fees 
at the March 9, 2016 CSEC meeting. 
 
Fees: Section G.3. of the Special Events Policy states that “The Community Services 
and Environment Commission shall annually establish an appropriate rental fee for the 
Farmers’ Market, as part of its annual review of the Farmers’ Market Plaza Use 
Application”.  The following table summarizes recent fees associated with the Farmers’ 
Market. The fees paid to the Sonoma County Sheriff’s Department for security are under 
a separate contract and are not included: 
 

Rental Fee Damage Maintenance 
Fee 

Alcohol 
Permit 

Application 
Fee Total 

 

$4,025 -0- 
 

-0- 
 

 
$460 

 
$719 $5,204 2015

$4,025 -0- 
 

-0- 
 

 
N/A 

 
$229 $4,254 

 
2014

 

$4,025 -0- 
 

-0- 
 

 
N/A 

 
$253 $4,278 

 
2013

 

$4,250 -0- 
 

-0- 
 

 
N/A 

 
$253 $4,503 

 
2012

 
 
In 2016 the City Council updated the City of Sonoma Fee Schedule.  Accordingly, the 
following fees would be applicable to the Farmers’ Market should they be subject to the 
standard fee schedule. Note that because the Horseshoe lawn is typically not available 
for use, no fee has been established for its rental.  If subject to the standard fees, 
VOMCFM would be subject to $14,708 for rental and maintenance fees and would be 
required to provide a $10,400 refundable damage deposit. 
 



Standard Fees: 
  
Application 
Fee 

Rental Fees Per Day  Rental 
Fees 
Total 

Maintenance 
Fee 

Damage Deposits  Total Damage 
Deposit 

$958.00   26 days 

$200 
Horseshoe 
Pavement  $5,200  > 48 

Hours
$750 

26 
days 

$200 
Horseshoe 
Pavement  $5,200 

   26 Days 
$300 Rear 
parking  $7,800 

26 
days 

$200 Rear 
Parking Area  $5,200 

Total Fees  $14,708                       

Total 
Deposits  $10,400                       

 
 
As indicated in the tables above, over the years a subsidy has been provided by the City 
of Sonoma to the Farmers’ Market event organizers. At this time the CSEC should 
determine the amount of required fees and deposits for the 2016 event.  In the past the 
City has not required a deposit and that continues to be staff’s recommendation. It is 
also staff’s recommendation that the fees be paid by the event organizer prior to the first 
Farmers’ Market as there are no other examples of events that pay event fees after the 
event has concluded. It should be noted that last year the CSEC allowed the VOMCFM 
to pay the fees no later than November 2, 2015, and the fees were received by the City 
on January 7, 2016. The CSEC should decide the amount of fees for the event and if it is 
less than $14,708 be advised that it will be considered a subsidy provided by the City of 
Sonoma. 
 
Recommended Commission Action:  

 Establish fees for 2016 Tuesday Night Farmers Market 
 
Attachments: 

 Letter from Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market, dated February 26, 
2016 

 
cc: Christopher Welch/Emily Fitzpatrick, via email. 















Expenses
Estimated Actual

Total Expenses $700.00 $300.00

Site Estimated Actual Refreshments Estimated Actual
Room and hall fees $500.00 Food
Site staff Drinks
Equipment Linens
Tables and chairs Staff and gratuities
Total $500.00 $0.00 Total $0.00 $0.00

Decorations Estimated Actual Program Estimated Actual
Flowers $200.00 $300.00 Performers
Candles Speakers
Lighting Travel
Balloons Hotel
Paper supplies Other
Total $200.00 $300.00 Total $0.00 $0.00

Publicity Estimated Actual Prizes Estimated Actual
Graphics work Ribbons/Plaques/Trophies
Photocopying/Printing Gifts
Postage Total $0.00 $0.00
Total $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous Estimated Actual
Telephone
Transportation
Stationery supplies
Fax services
Total $0.00 $0.00

Event Budget for [Event Name]



Income
Estimated Actual

Total income $1,936.00 $1,831.00

Admissions
Estimated No. Actual No. Type Price Estimated Income Actual Income

300 278 Adults @ $5.00 $1,500.00 $1,390.00
197 195 Children @ $2.00 $394.00 $390.00

42 51 Other @ $1.00 $42.00 $51.00
Total $1,936.00 $1,831.00

Ads in program
Estimated No. Actual No. Type Price Estimated Income Actual Income

Covers @ $0.00 $0.00
Half-pages @ $0.00 $0.00

Quarter-pages @ $0.00 $0.00
Total $0.00 $0.00

Exhibitors/vendors
Estimated No. Actual No. Type Price Estimated Income Actual Income

Large booths @ $0.00 $0.00
Med. booths @ $0.00 $0.00

Small booths @ $0.00 $0.00
Total $0.00 $0.00

Sale of items
Estimated No. Actual No. Type Price Estimated Income Actual Income

Items @ $0.00 $0.00
Items @ $0.00 $0.00
Items @ $0.00 $0.00
Items @ $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00

Event Budget for [Event Name]



Estimated Actual
Total income $1,936.00 $1,831.00
Total expenses $700.00 $300.00

Total profit (or loss) $1,236.00 $1,531.00

Event Budget for [Event Name]
Profit - Loss Summary

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

Estimated Actual

Total income
Total expenses





 
Item #9 

March 9, 2016 

M E M O 

 

TO: Community Services and Environment Commission 

FROM: Associate Planner/ Special Event Coordinator 

RE: Continued discussion and possible recommendations regarding a monument pro-
posal for the Plaza 

 

 
Background 
On September 9, 2015, the City Council conceptually approved a request to erect a monument to Sonoma’s Found-
er, General M.G. Vallejo. On November 18, 2015 the CSEC recommended that the City Council approve the request 
to erect a monument to Sonoma’s Founder, General M.G. Vallejo in the Plaza Park with the condition that the medi-
um for the surrounding area be subject to further review by the CSEC prior to monument installation. Specifically, 
the CSEC requested review of the sample materials for the plaques, stone seating wall, and stone pavers. In addition, 
the CSEC would like to review the plaque font and plaque text. The motion was approved 6 to 1 (Comm. Allebach 
dissented). 
 
The Assistant City Manager has indicated that the City Council consideration will not occur until the CSEC has re-
viewed and recommended the approval of the revised medium consisting of sample materials for the plaques, stone 
seating wall, and stone pavers. 
 
 
Recommended Commission Action:  
 
Commission discretion. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Email from Robert Demler, dated March 1, 2016. 
2. Proposed plaque language. 
3. Plaque Product Catalog. 
4. Sculpture Installation Concept. 
5. CSEC Agenda Item #5 from the November 18, 2015 meeting. 

 
 
 
cc: Robert Demler, via email 
  
 George McKale, via email 













































UPDATE ON PLAZA PARK RESTROOMS 

Prepared by Denise Wilbanks 

 

On February 25 I met with Dan Takasugi, Public Works Director; Trent Hudson, Public Works 
Operations Manager; Terry Melberg, Parks Supervisor; and Katherine Wall, Public Works 
Administrative Manager.  

We discussed the CSEC’s interest in improving the Plaza restrooms.  I provided photos and 
mentioned specifically the floors, restroom partitions, paint, lighting and mirrors.  Public Works 
shared with me that City Council would be reviewing the budget within the next 3 to 4 months 
and plans were in the works for replacing the partitions, repainting, improved lighting, and 
possibly the replacement of many of the fixtures.  Dan has offered to look into options for the 
flooring and mirrors.  Once approved, all maintenance and repair items will go out for bid and 
improvements are expected to occur in the winter of 2017. 
 
I suggested that perhaps city staff could do some interim fixes like repainting, epoxy coating the 
floors, and adding mirrors, but was told that these projects involve much more preparation and 
work than initially meets the eye and the city does not have employees available to perform 
these tasks. While staff was open to considering my ideas and suggestions they also provided 
reasons why some items could not be accomplished either in the near future or at any time. 
 
We spent a lengthy amount of time discussing the vandalism that occurs on a regular basis. 
Terry mentioned that the locking system is frequently compromised and the restrooms often 
stay open overnight which is when the vandalism occurs.  Apparently there is quite a large 
homeless population in Sonoma due to the Overnight Shelter now providing day services and 
this is the cause of the vandalism.  Public Works is responsible for maintaining the restrooms 
and I felt that these employees were a bit demoralized about the lack of respect shown to the 
facilities.  They also expressed that the restrooms are receiving much more use than they were 
designed to accommodate.   
 
I believe that the issues with the locking system are something that can be resolved with 
assistance from staff, law enforcement, and perhaps volunteers.  I would like to suggest that 
City Council prioritize restroom improvements.  As Sonoma Plaza events continue to grow in 
popularity, we must have appropriate restroom facilities to accommodate our citizens and 
visitors.   
 
Another possibility might be to have the existing restrooms reserved for day use and special 
evening events only and perhaps add some more industrial-type restrooms which would be 
open on a 24 hour basis.     
 

kwall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item #10


	Agenda
	Item 1 Attachment 
	Item 2.a Attachment
	Item 3.a Attachment
	Item 4.a Attachment
	Item 5 Attachment
	Item 6 Attachment
	Item 8 Attachment
	Item 9 Attachment
	Item 10 Attachment



